ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 16, 2007
10: 06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representati ve John Coghill
Representative M ke Kelly
Representative Les Gara

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 228

"An Act relating to fees for certain nedical treatnment and
service under the Alaska Wrkers' Conpensation Act; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 228(L&C) OUT OF COWMM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 65

"An Act relating to breaches of security involving personal
information, credit report and credit score security freezes,
consuner credit nonitoring, credit accuracy, protection of
social security nunbers, care of records, disposal of records,
identity theft, furnishing consunmer credit header information,
credit cards, and debit cards, and to the jurisdiction of the
office of admnistrative hearings; anending Rule 60, Alaska
Rul es of Civil Procedure; and providing for an effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- April 16, 2007



BILL: HB 228
SHORT TI TLE. WORKERS COWP. MEDI CAL TREATMENT FEES
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLY

03/ 29/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 29/ 07 (H L&C, FIN
04/ 16/ 07 (H L&C AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

DEREK M LLER, Staff

to Representative Mke Kelly

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 228 on behal f of
Representative Kelly, sponsor.

SALLI E STUVEK, Director

Human Resour ces

Fai r banks Nort hstar Borough

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 228.

M CHAEL HAUCEN, Executive Director

Al aska Physi ci ans & Surgeons, Inc.

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of the bill as
"another stop-gap neasure" to wuse in figuring out what 1is
driving the cost increases in the workers' conpensation system

LI NDA HALL, Director

Di vision of |nsurance

Department of Commerce, Community, & Economic Devel opnent
( DCCED)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the division in
support of HB 228.

JAMES J. JORDAN, Executive Director

Al aska State Medical Association (ASMA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of a balanced approach
that will help neet physician recruiting goals.

ROD BETI T, President
Al aska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association ( ASHNHA)

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- April 16, 2007



Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 228.

PAUL F. LISANKIE, Director

Di vision of Wrkers' Conpensation

Depart ment of Labor & Wbrkforce Devel opment (DLWD)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Ofered information during the hearing on
HB 228.

WAYNE STEVENS, President/ CEO

Al aska State Chanber of Conmerce

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Encouraged the work of the conmttee in
nmovi ng HB 228 through the | egislative process.

BARBARA HUFF TUCKNESS, Director

Governmental and Legislative Affairs

Teansters Local 959

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 228.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 10:06:20 AM Represent ati ves
Buch, Gatto, Gardner, and O son were present at the call to
order. Representati ves LeDoux, Ranras, and Neuman arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 228- WORKERS' COWP. NMEDI CAL TREATMENT FEES

10: 06: 36 AM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 228, "An Act relating to fees for certain nedical
treatment and service under the Alaska W rkers' Conpensation
Act; and providing for an effective date."

10: 06: 53 AM

DEREK M LLER, Staff to Representative Mke Kelly, Al aska State
Legi slature, presented HB 228 on behalf of Representative Kelly,
prime sponsor. He paraphrased the sponsor statenment, which read
as follows [original punctuation provided]:

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- April 16, 2007



In 2005 the Alaska Legislature passed [Senate Bill]
130 which was a rework of the W rkers Conpensation

statutes. As part of this rework, nedica
were frozen at the 2004 fee schedule so that
could be done of the underlying reasons for

paynent s
a review
prem um

increases. This review was to be jointly done by a

speci al Workers Conpensation Legislative Taskforce
& Workforce
Two

concert with the Departnment of Labor

Devel opment Medical [Services] Review Conmttee.

inmportant tasks of the comrittee were

to

in

| ook at

program design problens and to study the underlying
reasons for nedical cost increases experienced in the
program Following this, the taskforce was to devel op
recommendations to noderate program increases in
future. As part of the conditions of the nedica

freeze, the Taskforce was to have conpleted

t he
rate
their

review by February of 2006 and the rate freeze would
sunset in August of 2007 (to be replaced by a new fee

schedul e) .

The Taskforce did not conplete its report

of last year and we are facing the sunset of

nmedi cal rate freeze in August of this year.
not yet a plan for the post rate freeze sunset

and that is why this legislation was

Under HB 228, the nedical rate freeze

based on the CPlI [Consunmer Price |ndex]

Ther e
peri od
i nt roduced.

by February
t he

is

woul d be
extended two years to allow tinme for recommendations
to be developed. It inplenments an annual rate increase

i ndex.

extension of the freeze should allow tine for

i nsurance conpanies to conpile and submt

analysis and recommendations after review ng
costs for injured workers so that the Legislature can
address the underlying reasons for prem umincreases.

MR. MLLER directed attention to the sectiona

Section 1. Specifies that fees and other

nmedi cal treatnment or service provided before August
2007 do not exceed the fees in the fee

Thi s
t he
their
care

anal ysis for HB
228, which read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

specified by the Wrkers' Conpensation Board in
Specifies

publi shed bulletin dated Decenber 1, 2004.
t r eat nent
but

that fees and other charges for nedical
service provided after August 1, 2007,

charges for

1

schedul e

its

or

bef ore

March 31, 2009 is the percentage change between 2004

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4-

Apri

16, 2007



and 2006 in the nedical care conponent of the Consuner
Price Index for the Anchorage netropolitan area.

Section 2. Repeals AS 23.30.097(a)(1), specifying fees
and other charges for nedical treatnment or service may
not exceed the fees in the fee schedule specified by
the Workers' Conpensation Board in its published
bull etin dated Decenber 1, 2004.

Section 3. Allows the Departnent of Labor & Workforce
Devel opnent and Workforce Devel opnent to adopt
regul ati ons necessary to inplenment this act.

Section 4. Section 3 of this act takes effect
i mredi ately.

Section 5. Section 1 and 2 of this act take effect
July 31, 2007.

MR. M LLER described HB 228 as "a short-term solution to a |ong-

term fix that we hope will ... cone to fruition in the com ng
years."
10:10: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to whether information is
avai lable to injured workers seeking nmedical care to direct them
to physicians who will treat themat the current rate.

MR. MLLER said he does not know, but he suggested that an
upcomng testifier may be able to provide and answer.

10: 10: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated that although ongoing care is a
different issue, imedi ate care often neans energency room care.

10:11: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX expressed concern regarding whether the
i ssues currently affecting those under Medicare are happening to
t hose covered by workers' conpensati on.

MR. MLLER replied that the sponsor's intention is to streanline
HB 228 to address the nedical conponent of workers' conpensation
rates, with the hope that larger issues will be addressed in the
future

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- April 16, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX clarified that she is not trying to fix
the national health care problens in one bill, but rather wants
to ensure that HB 228 "or the previous bill" didn't cause the
same problenms for workers as has happened for those under
Medi car e.

10: 12: 58 AM

MR. MLLER, in response to a question from Representative Gatto,
confirmed that nedical fees currently charged by nedical doctors
are capped at the 2004 nedical rate fees, and HB 288 proposes to
adjust that cap according to the rising cost of providing those
servi ces.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the hospital fees, outside of the
physi ci ans' fees, would al so be adj ust ed.

MR. M LLER said he does not know, but can find out.

10:14: 32 AM

SALLIE STUVEK, Director, Human Resources, Fairbanks Northstar
Borough, said she oversees the workers' conpensation prograns
for both the Fairbanks North Star Borough and the Fairbanks
North Star Borough School District. She stated that the
Fai rbanks North Star Borough supports HB 228. She rel ayed that
the borough was concerned about the sunset provisions and is
pl eased that Ilegislation has been introduced to address that
i ssue. She conti nued:

The worst-case scenario for us would be to allow the
fee schedule to | apse w thout any consideration of its
I npact . W need stability in establishing costs for
provi der services, and an extension of the fee
schedule allows for that stability.

The adjustnent to the schedule al so seens reasonable,
as it has been frozen at 2004 rates. An inflation
factor is appropriate, as costs have not rennined
stagnant for nedical services during that period.
However, the nechani sm chosen in the |anguage may not
be available; I'"m not sure that ... the Departnent of
Labor & Workforce Devel opnent has actually calcul ated
the nedical CPlI for Anchorage, so you may want to take
a |l ook at that.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- April 16, 2007



The only part of the bill . that we have
reservations about is the March, 2009, sunset
| anguage. The extension basically puts us back in the
same scenario that we're currently in; it just extends
it. And so, we would propose that consideration of a
| ong-term solution be found so that we don't have to
continue to address this issue in the future.

Having said that, we are ... supportive of the bill
as is, because it does put us in a nuch better
position in the interim than just having the fee
schedul e | apse in August.

The committee took a brief at-ease from 10:17:17 AMto 10:17:39
AM

10: 17: 45 AM

M CHAEL  HAUGEN, Executive Director, Al aska Physicians &
Surgeons, Inc., testified in support of the bill as "another
stop-gap neasure” to use in figuring out what is driving the
cost increases in the workers' conpensation system He urged
the conmittee to put pressure on the insurance industry to
produce data to figure out "where these costs are comng from"
He said the request for that data originated back in Cctober
2004, and it has still not been produced.

10: 18: 41 AM

LI NDA HALL, Director, Division of Insurance, Departnent of
Comrerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED), testified
on behalf of the division in support of HB 228. She said the
bill obviously affects |anguage in the Departnment of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnent, but the actual outconme of the cost of the
wor ker s’ conpensati on system is what drives wor ker s’
conpensation prem uns. She agreed that sonme type of cap on
nmedi cal fees will be necessary once the current freeze ends, and
she said she thinks HB 288 seens reasonable in its use of a CPI
adj ust nent .

M5. HALL said sonme of the information she would present is
avai lable in the commttee packet. She noted that in Al aska,
[ medi cal] fees have increased from 41 percent of the cost of the
system in 1985 to its current anmount of 69 percent. She
predi cted that w thout sone type of paraneter on how nuch can be
charged for nedical fees, there is likely to be a dramatic
increase in the cost of the system She said that system cost

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- April 16, 2007



drives prem um costs. She said one type of premum cost is
called, "lost cost,"” which is the physical dollars paid out.
Ms. Hall explained that the when the division does a prem um
rate-maki ng analysis, it |looks at historical system cost, using
three years of system cost data, and then it does what 1is
called, "trending," which projects future costs. After that,
the division adds a carrier conponent related to expenses. She
added, "So, what we're talking about today is just the actual
| ost cost piece of a rate naking."

M5. HALL nentioned a couple of premum rate rankings from
Oregon. She related that in 2004, Al aska had the second highest
rates in workers' conpensation in the country, with its average
being $4.39, while California's average was $6.08. As of 2006

Al aska ranked nunber one, wth approxinately a $5.00 average
rate index, exceeding California's rate by nearly 80 cents. She
stated, "I don't think this is a nunber one we ever hoped to
reach."

M5. HALL nentioned a rate history going back to 1959. She said
there was a 10.2 percent rate increase in 2002. The | argest
rate increase, at 21.4 percent, was in 2004. She noted that
that rate increase has slowed and, as of 2007, there has been a
rate decrease. She stated, "I would not presune to say that

that decrease will continue; | could alnost guarantee that it
won't if we don't do something about nedical fees.™

M5. HALL directed attention to a handout in the commttee packet

conpiled by the National Council on Conpensation |nsurance,
Inc., which suggests that if no action is taken, the system cost
Wl increase between 4.5-5.8 percent. She said that does not

i ncl ude conpensation premuns; it reflects only the system cost.
If HB 228 is passed, the inpact on the systemw || be reduced to
between .8-1.2 percent. Ms. Hall said any kind of inpact works
its way through the workers' conpensation rates for a period of
years. She said the division has seen those rate increases and
urges the legislature to pass HB 228.

M5. HALL nentioned another handout showi ng "nedical severity,"”
which she said includes factors of price and utilization, and
whi ch shows the increase in nedical costs over the CPI and how
conplex the issue actually is when conparing varying treatnments
and their related cost. She noted that there is a 25-page study
that she would neke available to any interested conmttee
menbers.

10: 24: 59 AM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- April 16, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX said the purpose of changing the workers'
conpensation law in 2005 was to allow a task force to create
i deas that would be inplenmented to solve the problem She said
that does not seem to have happened, thus, the legislature is
"back here again with this kind of band aid approach." She said
she is not confortable with that.

M5. HALL replied that she does not disagree with Representative
LeDoux and would like to see sonme |ong-term sol utions; however

it does not appear that those solutions are forthcom ng. In
regard to nedical data, she noted that there has been a half-
year debate over "who requested what from whom and when." She
stated that she did not receive a request for information unti

one and a half years ago. Claims data, she relayed, 1is
sensitive; it is personal information. She said the insurance

conpanies are wlling to provide information to one of two
sources: herself, as the director of the Division of |nsurance;
or the National Counci | on Conpensation |nsurance, t he
statistical agent. She continued:

In Decenber of last year there was a neeting where
there was finally a data set described of what kind of
information was being requested; what would satisfy
t he nmedi cal comunity, in terns of medi ca
i nformation. Also, to put together a body of data
that would give us sone idea of where we have, as a
state, areas that may be out of line or are grow ng
faster than other areas. That data took al nbst a year
to actually get at what is it you really want.

At that tine, the National Council on Conpensation has

done - for lack of better term- ... what's called a
"data call." They go out to the insurance conpanies
[and] they ask for the information. The insurance
conpani es have agreed to provide it. It is a manual
t ask. They did not keep this level of detail in the
data they collect. It's a ... gruesone, alnost nanua
task, going back to bill providers, bill reviewers,

and actually putting together manually the Kkind of
information we're asking for themto provide.

So, | would suggest to you that |'m anticipating, at
sone point, still this year - |I'm not going to say
when - we wll have the nedical data that has been
asked for.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- April 16, 2007



Meanwhil e, there is a national study - |'ve given you
two pages of it - that shows the same kind of data on
a national basis. So, I think we wll have a good
body of information analyzing the cost of various
types of clainms by various types of providers.

10: 29: 07 AM

M5. HALL, in response to a request from Representative Neuman,
expl ained that wi thout HB 228, there would be no cap on "the
provider fees that are charged to treat Wrker's Conpensation.”
She conti nued:

Up until August 1, of 2007, there has been a nedical
fee schedule pronulgated by the Division of Wrkers'
Conmpensation - the Wrkers' Conpensation Board. That
fee schedule still dates to Decenber of 2004, so that
the fees have been frozen since that date. There
would be a normal increase, say, in 2006 and 2007,
because that fee schedule would have applied to 2005.
Even ... if we had continued the cap, there would be
| ogi cal increase as the nedical fees go up. So, this
is saying [that] wthout any cap, they wll go up
reasonably to 5.8 percent [maximun], | believe. Even
with this cap, it's ... noving the cap forward. I
don't think anybody thought that it was fair to keep
that freeze going on at that level into perpetuity.
So, there would still be ... an increase, although
much smal | er.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked Ms. Hall how an increase of 4.5 to
5.8 percent in workers' conpensation rates would affect small
busi ness owners.

M5. HALL enphasized that "this isn't premum rates,” but rather
is "a conmponent."” She conti nued:

| think that without this bill, or sonething of this
nature, we wll Ilikely see an increase immediately,
because ... from the analysis NCC [National Council
on Conpensation Insurance, Inc.] does - and they do
the rate filings for Alaska; they are the statistical
agent ... - | think we can anticipate seeing an
increase imediately. W wll also see an increase in
wor kers' conpensation nedical care that wll carry

forward for a nunber of years.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- April 16, 2007



10: 32: 38 AM

M5. HALL, in response to Representative Gatto, confirned that
the bill adjusts the CPI

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if emergency room and post-care fees
are al so capped.

M5. HALL replied that that is her understandi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked, "If ... a physician or a person
involved in long-term care sinply said, 'At that rate, |'m not
interested,” would we be forced to pay the higher rate if no
service was available, or would we send a patient outside, or
have we not reached that situation where we sinply had a refusal
for care?"

M5. HALL offered her wunderstanding that there have been no
conplaints regarding the availability of nedical care to date,
al though she indicated that that could happen. She said, "The
conplaints we receive from injured workers are not about the
access to nedical care, but rather the way in which their claim
has been handl ed. "

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX recalled that during her first session as
a legislator, the legislature changed the nedical tort system
cappi ng punitive danages. The reason, she reviewed, was to nmake

Al aska nmore "doctor friendly,” in order to solve a shortage of
doctors. This year, she noted, the House has voted to increase
the nunber of WAM schol arshi ps. She questioned how a bill
designed to put a cap on nedical fees wll fit into the

phi | osophy of nmaking Al aska nore desirable for doctors to cone
live and practice.

M5. HALL responded that that is not her area of expertise. She
of fered her wunderstanding that M. Jordan had indicated that
doctors do support [HB 228].

10: 35: 50 AM

CHAIR OLSON said he has spoken wth many nenbers of the
af orenenti oned task force. He said he thinks part of the
problemis that Senators Seekins and Guess were no |onger on the
task force as of |ast Novenber. He offered his understanding
that "the framework for the task force" still exist, but sinply

has not been funded.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- April 16, 2007



M5. HALL said that's her understandi ng.

10: 36: 26 AM

JAMES J. JORDAN, Executive Director, Alaska State Medica
Association (ASMA), in response to Representative LeDoux's
previously stated question, said the Alaska State Medical
Associ ation represents physicians across the state. He said
there are many nenbers who are enployers "no different than any
other small enployer,” and there are nenbers for whom a |arge

portion of their practice involves dealing with injured workers.
He stated that the Alaska State Medical Association's interest
in HB 228 and in dealing with "any appropriate and tinely
change” is "a balancing act." He posited that the association
is interested in a bal anced approach - having a fair systemthat
wi ||l hel p neet physician recruiting goals.

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX referred to a letter [included in the
conm ttee packet] from Roland GCower, MD., [President of ASMj],
dated April 13, 2007, which she said does not seem to be a
"ringing endorsenent”™ of the bill. She asked M. Jordan to
respond.

MR. JORDAN agreed that the letter is not a ringing endorsenent;
however, he indicated that it includes a recomendation that
[the bill] be anended to "tie in some regular provision of such
data" to be reviewed by the Medical Services Review Conmttee
(MBRC) . He said that frankly, ASMA is guessing at what its
menbers' reactions will be to HB 228. He stated that the reform
enacted in 2005 was supported by the nedical association on the
basis that there would be an objective review of data regarding
what is driving nedical costs, in order to determ ne "which
areas and which surgery" are needed, as well as to ensure
doctors can [perform procedures] "with the scal pel and not the
machete. "

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX shared her understanding that the ASMA
does not support HB 228 in its present form but supports the
bill if anmended.

MR. JORDON confirnmed that's correct. He said the association
would like to see a tie-in to the production of data, not only
related to the present, but also into the future.

10: 41: 51 AM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- April 16, 2007



CHAIR OLSON noted that M. Jordan served as the Deputy Director
of the Division of Insurance prior to his noving to ASMA He
stated that he has found M. Jordan to Dbe extrenely
know edgeabl e regarding workers' conpensation issues over the
years, anong other insurance issues.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referred to the aforenmentioned letter
from Dr. Gower, and drew attention to the |ast sentence, which
read as foll ows:

ASMA urges you to not take action that will adversely
i mpact an injured worker's access to care.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER pointed out that the letter does not
specify whether, in the opinion of ASMA, HB 228 woul d adversely
i npact that access. She said it is unclear whether or not ASMVA
supports or opposes the bill.

[Due to technical difficulties, there is no sound recording from
10:43:00 to 10:54:25; that segnment was reconstructed from Gavel
to Gavel 's recording.]

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referenced the |ast paragraph on the
first page of the letter fromM. Gower, which read as foll ows:

It nmust be pointed out that it is ASMA' s understandi ng
that physicians do not have a different fee schedule
for injured workers than for other patients.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she would like the record to reflect
whether or not that is a fact, rather than just a general
under st andi ng.

MR. JORDAN replied that he does not know the answer. He
explained that fee data is not collected by the association.
Furthernore, he said that the association has not heard,
anecdotal ly, of physicians charging different rates to attend to
an injury resulting in an accident at work versus an accident on
t he ski sl opes.

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX questioned the need for the freeze if
physi cians are not charging differently for work versus non-work
i njuries.

10: 44: 50 AM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- April 16, 2007



M5. HALL explained that the Departnment of Labor & W rkforce
Devel opnent has always had caps on provider fees and fee
schedul es. She said "we" have the ability to negotiate between
payors and providers related to nedical fees. She nentioned
preferred provider organizations (PPGCs) and various discounted
pl ans. She stated, "None of that is a tool that is available to
the payers of workers' conpensation clains, whether they be
i nsurance conpanies or self insured; that is prohibited under
statute today."

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX asked, "Way don't we sinply cap the fees
that the workers' conpensation carriers can charge, or |ower
t hose fees?"

M5. HALL replied that if the fees that insurance conpanies can
charge are capped below their actual costs, the carriers are
going to be less willing to wite fees in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX questioned why the sane logic would not
apply to workers' conpensation carriers and physici ans.

M5. HALL replied that it is her responsibility to |look at clains
costs and adjust accordingly, and she said she does not know
that anybody has that kind of oversight of the charges and the
actual costs of nedical providers.

10:48: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for clarification regarding the
task force. She said if the task force has not been effective
in the past, perhaps there is different approach that should be
t aken.

M5. HALL responded that she thinks the data and the task force
are two different things. The task force nmet and cane up with a
report. She conti nued:

The Medical Services Review Committee was supposed to
bring back recommendations to that group regarding
what they felt mght be solutions to the problens that
we're encountering with the nmedical costs. That group
was | ooking for data. They have cone to nme for that
data at this point, but not two and a half years ago.

So, | think the task force did perform the functions
as they were set out, and | can't tell you that it
woul d or wouldn't be a good idea to continued that. |
think that was a legislative call on legislative

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- April 16, 2007



nmenbers, as well as various stakehol ders. | nean, |
think it was an excellent exchange of ideas and an
attenpt to get buy-in.

M5. HALL, in response to a question from Representative Gardner,
expl ai ned that "severity" relates to cost of clains, not injury.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked Ms. Hall to give her opinion as to
why the task force is taking longer to conplete its job.

M5. HALL stated that the task force is having a difficult tine
conpleting its job for the sane reason the legislature has had a
difficult time westing with issues: there are so nmany diverse
stakeholders wth varying opinions regarding what needs to

change and what does not. She said she thinks there is an
overall thought that anything done to help one stakehol der
automatically penalizes another stakehol der. She said she does

not think there was adequate tine and discussion to arrive at a
sol ution acceptable to all the stakehol ders.

CHAIR OLSON asked if stakeholders are being treated as sacred
COWs.

M5. HALL said she cannot answer that question.

10: 52: 50 AM

ROD BETIT, President, Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Hone
Associ ation (ASHNHA), testified in support of HB 228. He noted
that there is a statenent from the ASHNHA nenbership in the
commttee packet. He said ASHNHA began the process sone tine
ago of trying to head off what it sees as a serious problem for
smal | and nmedi um enpl oyers should HB 288 not be passed, which is
that there is no admnistrative nethod in place to take the
place of the cap when it is repealed. Wthout the cap, he
rel ated, insurers would be forced to pay charges for physicians
in the hospitals, which would result in 25-30 percent higher
paynents for services rendered. He explained, "W give big
di scounts currently under this program?"”

MR. BETIT rem nded the commttee that he is talking only about
medical <clains related to injured workers' treatnents for

i njuries. He said, "There's a cap that's being extended and
then increased by the CPI. It's only a cap in those injuries
t hensel ves. It isn't a cap on everything that physicians in

hospitals do; it's specific to that population of patients and
their specific injury.”

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- April 16, 2007



MR. BETIT said ASHNHA approached the bill sponsor to warn that
without tinely legislation, the cap would be repealed in August
[ 2007], "the charges are then what they pay ... by," and "the
reserves that insurers have been collecting through premuns to
pay for that nedical care won't be enough to cover it." He said
there will be future adjustnments and prem uns, and principally
the small enmployers or nedium enployers - because a lot of
| arger enployers self-insure - wll see sonme very significant
changes to their prem um structure. He said he doesn't think
anyone wants that to happen.

MR. BETIT stated, "The thing that has been holding up a
solution, in ny view, is the nmedical cost analysis." He said he
served on the task force where no one wanted to "drill down into
making finite recomrendations for permanent solutions 'til they
understood what the nedical cost increases were attributed to."
He said, "W have sonme suspicions, but nobody had any hard data
to be able to decide what to do ...." M. Betit said a genera

rate adjustnent across the entire conmunity was not appropriate,

because there were "specific areas we thought were going up
faster than others.™ The data that would help decide what
action is needed, originally due by sunmer [2007], is now
expected to be available at a l|ater date. He stated his
understanding that the task force is "sunsetted" - the origina

extension period having expired already. M. Betit reconmended
that the Medical Services Review Conmittee, within the
Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent, be given the task
of coming up wth recomendations, hopefully by the next
| egi sl ative session, at which point there could be a neani ngfu

di scussion regarding the present and future of the workers

conpensati on programin Al aska.

MR BETIT said it is both his and his nenbership's perspective
that HB 228 is "critical to head off a particular problem"™ He
stated that ASHNHA does not |ike extending the cap, because it
does not think that is the best way to do business; however, he
said he thinks there could be sone serious repercussions in the
future if there's nothing to take the place of the cap that is
bei ng repeal ed.

10: 56: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH requested clarification regarding workers'
conpensation care costs.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- April 16, 2007



VR. BETIT replied that there are nmultiple reinbursenent

arrangenents agreed to by hospitals. He said there was a
rei nbursenent nethodol ogy used by the Departnent of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opment in workers' conpensation up until 2004,

whereby it would take charges from all the hospitals and arrive
at a per day rate for any worker-related care provided by
hospitals. Senate Bill 130 extended that plan for two years in
order to allow nore tinme to cone up with a better system The
proposed legislation would once again extend that plan, while
also giving "a CPlI adjustnent” for two years, which would be a
slight inprovenment over using the rates from 2004.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH stated his concern that the level of care
"i's the sanme for that particular type of injury and that type of
paynent as it is for any other type of injury.”

MR. BETIT confirnmed that the care remains the sanme; there is no
difference in care provided based on the agreed upon
rei nbur senent arrangenents.

10: 59: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked M. Betit to share wth the
committee the problenms he has addressed, what solutions were
found, and why he feels nore tine is needed.

MR. BETIT responded that two groups were working on the issue
simul taneously: the Medical [Services] Review Conmttee, in the
Department of Labor & W rkforce Devel opnent, and the task force
created by the legislature. He indicated that the focus [of the
| egislative task force] was on the wunderlying cause of the
health care costs and possible solutions. He said there were
small steps taken initially, but wuntil the cost data was
avai l able, no one felt confortable noving forward wth permanent
recommendat i ons. He said he personally has never seen specific
recomrendati ons conme out of any of the |egislative |eadership of
that task force. In response to a followup question from
Representative Neuman, offered his understanding that the
primary reason for the extension was that Senator Seekins,
chairing the task force, had noted at its |last neeting that the
earliest [the data] would be available would be in July 2007.
He said he heard that through third-party neans, and he
understands that there may be additional conplications to del ay
t he dat a.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- April 16, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER offered her understanding that the
hospital association is not subject to the rate freeze, but
rather, it has a rate negotiated with the state.

MR. BETIT replied as foll ows:

W would be subject to this bill. VWhat | was
referring to is that ... the reinbursenent arrangenent
bet ween the workers' conpensation program and each of
our hospitals ... wasn't so nuch negotiated, but it
was arrived at by the board and [its] process of
setting those rates over the years. And it's a per-
day rate, and it's different for each hospital. W do
negotiate lots of rates, obvi ousl vy, with other
entities, like enployers; but we don't have as much

i ndi vidual negotiation authority when we're working
with the state on [its] prograns [as] we do with other

entities.
11: 01: 49 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked, "If you operate under a negoti ated
rate with ... other organizations, ... and you're subject to
this 2004 rate freeze, what ... was the rate used for vyour
base?"

MR. BETIT answered that the Department of Labor & W rkforce
Devel opment conpiled a history of the clains submtted for
i njured workers and what the charges for those clains were, from
which the board and the departnent produced a daily rate. He
said [ ASHNHA] accepts that rate as paynent in full for services.
That is the rate that was in place in 2004 and has continued
under the freeze for the |last two years.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested that since ASHNHA is accustoned
to negotiating rates, if HB 228 did not pass, it could sinply
negotiate a rate that would not greatly increase the state's
cost .

MR  BETIT said he cannot speak for ASHNHA's 37 nenbers.
Notwi t hstanding that, he surm sed that "whatever they come up
[ Wt h] woul d  not be consistent throughout the system”
Furthernore, he said he does not know what the instructions from
t he Departnent of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent would be to the
insurers, in terns of what they should pay toward clains of
i njured workers.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- April 16, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER posited that if the association supports
HB 228, but the bill does not pass, then the association could
still choose to "inplenent it in ternms of [its] own coding for
Workers' [Conpensation]."

MR BETIT reiterated that the association does not mnake that

decision - its individual nenbers do, and he said he does not
know how those nmenbers woul d handl e that situation. In response
to a followup question from Representative Gardner, he
confirmed that those individuals have nmade the decision to
support the bill, because they believe it is the best solution

"to get the tine needed to nmke sone pernanent change to the
program w thout creating a financial crisis for anyone."

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX questioned why the workers' conpensation
carriers don't negotiate rates with physicians and hospitals as
heal t hcare insurers do.

MR. BETIT suggested that the Departnent of Labor & Wbrkforce
Devel opnment woul d be better equi pped to answer that question.

11: 05: 22 AM

MS. HALL stated that one of the reasons it does not work to have
negotiated rates for workers' conpensation is that "you can't
direct care." She conti nued:

W don't regulate their fee arrangenents wth any
provider; that's something the insurance conpany is
able to do with the provider. You then, in health
i nsur ance, have in-network providers and out-of-
network providers, for which the health insurance
carriers pay different anounts. But ... that is a
choice that you can go to an in-network or not, and
there may be a difference in cost.

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX, regarding the state health care system
of fered her understanding that there are no places where people
are directed to go, but she said she knows the rate is |ower for
those with health care insurance than for those without it.

M5. HALL said even with state insurance, there are both in-

network and out-of-network providers. Those providers are
rei nbursed, and the insured may be subject to a different |eve
of co-paynent. She rem nded the commttee that [the division]

doesn't regulate the state's health insurance program nor does

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- April 16, 2007



it regulate any self-insured program "so there may be sone
differences in that also.”

11: 07: 46 AM

PAUL F. LISANKIE, Director, Dvision of Wrkers' Conpensation
Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent, stated that under

current law, it is illegal to interfere with the selection of a
health care provider; the injured worker has control over the
sel ection. He concurred with M. Hall that typically, when
there is sonme negotiation, the quid pro quo is: "If you give us
a lower volune rate, we can guarantee you that you'll get the
vol une of people seeking your services, and ... a workers'

conpensation insurer doesn't have any control over that process,
ot her than the pay up to the required anmount."”

11: 08: 38 AM

MR. BETIT, in response to Representative Buch, confirned his
understanding is that the aforenentioned task force has been
di scontinued, as it has not net since Septenber [2006], and
there is no noney appropriated for its continuance. In response
to a followup question from Representative Buch, he reiterated
that July 2007 was the estimted date provided at Senator
Seekins' last task force neeting on which the anticipated data
woul d be nade avail able; however, since then that date has been
post poned, possibly by four to five nonths. He recommended that
the Medical Services Review Conmttee in the Departnent of Labor
& Workforce Devel opnent be the entity to finish the work of the
task force regarding the presentation of the data.

11:10:15 AM

MR. BETIT, in response to Representative Gatto, confirned that
nmedi cal charges are specific to each hospital, thus there could
be ten different charges for the sane treatnent code dependi ng
on which hospital provides the treatnment. He explained that the
di scount percentage he had used during his previous testinony
was a best estimate based upon the daily rate set by the
Department of Labor & Wrkforce Developnment for that facility,
versus the charges at the tine. He continued:

It isn't really just a flat 25 percent; it's an
estimate on ny part, and it varies by facility - it
could be a little less, it could be a little nore.
But, no, they couldn't raise their rates and see any
inprovenent in what they're getting paid for the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- April 16, 2007



services that they're providing, because that's set by
t he Departnent of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent.

What [the] Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce
Devel opnent sets is a daily rate, per facility, for
each day of care that they provide to that injured
wor ker .

11: 12: 03 AM

WAYNE STEVENS, President/CEO Al aska State Chanber of Conmerce
("the chanber"), testified that the chanber has |ong advocated
to lower the high cost associated with workers' conpensation
insurance. He reviewed the history of the nedical rates and the
freeze. He stated that substantive reforns are needed to
address the quality of nedical utilization, as well as other
factors, such as frequency and [severity] of costs. M. Stevens
reviewed that the task force work was supposed to result in
recomrendations to ease rate increases going forward, and that
work was to result in a newwy recomended rate fee by the tine
the nedical rate freeze sunsets in August 2007. That work has

not been conpleted and the report has not been submtted. He
said the extension of the nedical rate freeze to March 2008,

proposed by HB 228, wll allow time for "the conmttee to
conplete its data gathering and analysis and develop its
recommendations,” and wll allow sufficient time for the
legislature to address the underlying reasons for premum
I ncr eases. He stated that the chanber encourages the work of

the committee in noving HB 228 through the | egislative process.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, referring to the statistics previously
stated by Representative Neuman regardi ng Al aska's poor standing
anong other states when conparing Wrker's Conpensation rates,
asked M. Stevens if his nmenbership believes it is nedical costs
that are to blane for the state's continued decline - even in
the face of a rate freeze - and whether another rate freeze wll
remedy the situation.

M. Stevens replied, "It's our belief that ... absent a rate
freeze, the rates wll escalate, presumably to nake up for
what ever perceived difference would have occurred in that
ensui ng two-year period and whatever CPl adjustnents may very
well be nmade." He said there are a nunmber of costs; however, he
stated that it is the understanding of [the Al aska Chanber of
Commerce] that nmedical costs are singularly the largest driver
of Worker's Conpensati on.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- April 16, 2007



CHAIR OLSON noted that the workers' conpensation rates dropped
approximately 11 percent in [2007] - the first time in seven
years there has been a reduction. He indicated that [the
freeze] may have had an inpact.

11:15: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN said he interprets one of M. Stevens'
prior remarks to nean that although there is a rate freeze, it
allows for CPlI increases; therefore, "it's not |like a doctor or
anybody in the nedical field is going to be going into the
negative on this."

MR. STEVENS responded, "That's not ny understandi ng. Consuner
Price Index is calculated by the Departnent of Labor & Workforce

Devel opnent at the national |evel on a nunber of factors ... to
rate the level of inflation annually, and that would - as it
[is] captured in this bill - ... allow the rates to increase,

based on that index."

11:17: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH shared his understanding that a mjor
conponent has been lost with the [discontinuation of] the task
force. He questioned whether there is a way to reinstate the
task force and reliably conplete the job that was start ed.

MR. LISANKIE replied that he agrees wth the previous testinony
of M. Betit that the Medical Services Review Comittee was
established as an ongoing entity. He posited that that
commttee has struck a good balance between health care
provi ders and other stakeholders in the workers' conpensation
system therefore, when the data becones available, that
commttee would certainly be willing to pick the issues up once
nore. He stated:

If it was a decision of the body that there should be
a new wor kers' conpensation task force, you would have
time to institute one to receive the recomendations
fromthe Medical Services Review Cormittee, or, in the
absence of such a task force, ny advice for the review
conmittee wuld be to submt it to the entire
| egi sl ature or, you know, through that methodol ogy.

11: 19: 06 AM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- April 16, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE BUCH expressed concern that the information be
recei ved.

MR. LI SANKIE offered his understanding that the on-going efforts
to get that data into the system are being nade independently of
the existence of the task force. He stated that he understands
Representative Buch's concern

MR. LISANKIE, in response to a question from Representative
LeDoux, said the price of prescription drugs is not capped. In
response to a followup question, he said the price of those
drugs has a significant inpact to medical costs. He said he has
no personal opinion regarding whether the price of prescription
drugs should be regulated, other than to say he thinks that is
an issue that the MSRC is free to take up. He concluded, "If |
continue to have input on that conmttee, | certainly think it
woul d be of interest."”

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN observed that the testinony of those who
support the bill seens to show that they want the extended
freeze in order to have tine for a solution to be found. He
inquired as to how that solution wuld affect workers'
conpensation in the future, particularly as it relates to
conpetition in the market place. He said he thinks one of the
maj or reasons for the large increase in nedical costs for
wor kers' conpensation is due to the lack of conpetition in
Al aska, which he said is a result of the state's high incident
rate, | ow popul ation, and expansive state.

MR. LI SANKI E responded as foll ows:

| think that's actually what's driving the various
concerns of the various stakeholders, that we not do
sonething that appears logical on its face, based on
some experience in, say, a nore urbanized setting, and
then end up inflicting sonmething on the |ess urbanized
state of Alaska, which wouldn't work. And |'d say
that the challenge that's before the Mdical Services
Review Commttee or a task force or you, as individua
nmenbers of the legislature, is that in many instances,
one person's unacceptable cost is sonebody else's
revenue streamor their benefit.

We're tal king about nedical costs as ... nore than 50
percent of workers' conpensation benefits, but that
certainly is going to affect the next tinme the cash
benefits are increased. People are going to weigh the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- April 16, 2007



overall inmpact on the system So, that is a bit of
[a] conundrum it is difficult for us to do things in
a setting where we have a huge geographical area and a
total population that's the size of ... a mediumsize
city. And | know that Director Hall is doing
everything she can to try and have nore insurance
conpanies conpete for the business, but certainly
everybody else that's a stakeholder in a process,
whet her they're a health care provider or a provider
of prescription drugs or durable nedical equipnment -
all these things go into this very conplicated
guestion that you' re asked to address.

11: 24: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked whether there are plans to work with
the attorney general (AG to do a significant overhaul of the
Wrker's Conpensation system because he said the attorney
general has the expertise to offer help.

MR. LISANKIE replied that he has worked with the AG previously
in various capacities and woul d be happy to work with him

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS suggested that the overhaul of the
wor kers' conpensation system mght be considered in January
2008.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH expressed appreciation for the work done by

M. Lisankie and Ms. Hall. He stated, "The one good thing we do
have is ... a carrier now that is in the black for the first
time in along tine, and ... if, by increnents, we can nmake sone
positive changes, | think that we're perhaps on the right track
here."

11: 28: 46 AM

BARBARA HUFF TUCKNESS, Director, Governmental and Legislative
Affairs, Teansters Local 959, testified in support of HB 228.
She confirnmed that she was a nenber of the [abor managenent
wor kers' conpensation coalition groups that worked for about one
and a half years and presented reconmended changes regarding
wor kers' conpensati on. Regarding the nedical conponent, she
said injuries relate to nedical costs. The coalition task force
was sonmewhat disappointed when recomendations that it gave
regardi ng workers' conpensation changes were set aside in favor
of then Governor Frank Mirkowski's own |egislation. She said

however, that sonme of the task force's reconmendati ons were

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- April 16, 2007



incorporated into that |egislation. She stated for the record
that the «coalition did discuss nedical costs, i ncl udi ng
phar maceutical costs. She stated that while it was not a big
change, the coalition did look at utilization of generic drugs.
She said she does not know any workers' conpensation in
exi stence in which an injured worker has had trouble finding a
physi ci an and appropriate treatnent.

M5. HUFF TUCKNESS enphasized that one big issue is related to
the controversion with the insurance conpanies, which she said
is a distinctly different situation than that of the nedical
cost s.

M5. HUFF TUCKNESS stated that Teansters Local 959 believes that
HB 228 is an inportant piece of |egislation, and while nenbers
of the Local 959 do not believe the proposed |egislation wl
fix the problem it will hopefully give an opportunity "for sone
folks to get back together again and to start |ooking at
hopeful 'y maki ng sone changes out there that are ... beneficial
to the injured workers.” M. Huff Tuckness said Al aska does not
have a system set up whereby an injured worker is "directed to
go to a physician,” and she said the Local 959 believes that is
a good factor, not a bad one. Because of that scenario, she
expl ained, "you don't have PPOs out there in the workers'
conpensation program "

11:32:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS concurred that two key points are reducing
costs to enployers, while providing the best benefits for
i njured workers. He asked Ms. Huff Tuckness to specul ate what
the situation would be Ilike now if the task force
recommendati ons she spoke of had been adopted into the workers

conpensation | egislation.

V. HUFF TUCKNESS responded t hat t hose t ask force
recommendati ons were actually two-fold. She said the task force
had a bill that it would have |liked to see introduced that would
have addressed sone of the existing cost issues. Anot her pi ece
of legislation the following year would have addressed the
nmedi cal and nore contentious issues that she said the task force
was not able to enconpass. She said she thinks the
af orenenti oned Medical Services Review Committee is having a
simlar problemin getting information. She said a nedical cost
is the thread that runs through everything that the Local 959
deals with. For exanple, when negotiation |abor agreenents, the
issue is the nmedical costs and how they will be covered, through

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 25- April 16, 2007



wages or other areas in the contracts. She indicated the need
to find a fair and balanced perspective that recognizes the
poi nt of physicians as well as workers.

CHAI R OLSON asked Ms. Huff Tuckness if she thinks MSRC would be
the vehicle to use to analyze the anticipated data once it
becones avail abl e.

M5. HUFF TUCKNESS answer ed yes.

M5. HUFF TUCKNESS, in response to Representative Neuman,
clarified that she had not been a participant on the |egislative
task force [during the hearing of Senate Bill 130]. She said
her involvenent was wth the Wrkers' Conpensati on Labor
Managenent Ad Hoc Committee, which she said ensured the
i npl enentation of legislation enacted to change workers

conpensati on. She reiterated that the Teansters Local 959
supports HB 228 and hopes to comment on the data once it is made
avai |l abl e.

M5. HUFF TUCKNESS, in response to Representative Buch, offered
further clarification regarding her involvenent in the ad hoc
comittee. She nmentioned a letter witten in January by Vince
Bel tram , Anerican Federation of Labor and Congress of
| ndustrial Organizations (AFL/CIO, to Dick Cattanach of the
Association of General Contractors of Alaska, suggesting the
reinstitution of the ad hoc comittee. She offered her
understanding that there has been no response to the letter.
She concluded, "The task force is something that's been out of
our ... hands."

11:39:42 AM

CHAIR OLSON, after ascertaining that there was no one else to
testify, closed public testinony.

MR MLLER drew attention to [Amendnent 1] in the comittee
packet, which he said would allow for the adjusted change to
mat ch t he national CPI

11:40: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN noved to adopt Anendnent 1, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 2, line 3,

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 26- April 16, 2007



Del ete: "for the Anchorage netropolitan area"

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX objected for discussion purposes. She
asked:

VWhat would be the difference between all ur ban
consuners - a consumer price index - or if you did it
on a totally ... statewi de basis, which would include
al | consuners, whet her they're in Anchor age,
Fai r banks, Juneau, or in the Bush?

MR. M LLER said he does not know.

11:43: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said he shares Representative LeDoux's
concern regarding the reflection of a different inflationary
schedule in the Bush; however, he said as it relates to
Amendnent 1, there is not a great deal of difference between the
CPl for Anchorage and the national CPI

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN said he thinks Amendnent 1 addresses
Representative LeDoux's concern that there be a broader scope

He said he sees Anendnent 1 as enconpassing the state as a
whol e.

11:44: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX questioned the choice of "doing this on
[an] increase in the consunmer price index for everybody all
across the country," rather than using the CPI for the State of
Al aska.

MR. MLLER offered his understanding that other states use a
simlar adjustnent to their workers' conpensation rates, thus he
thinks it is appropriate to use for the State of Al aska. In
response to Chair Oson, he confirnmed that the confornmty was
the intent of the bill drafter.

MR. MLLER, in response to Representative LeDoux, confirmed that
data regarding the medical care conponent is not available for
2003- 2004, so for those years, the state is conformng to the
nati onal CPI.

11:47: 00 AM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -27- April 16, 2007



MR MLLER, in response to Representative Gatto, stated his

belief that Amendnment 1 would benefit everyone. He said, "If
the commttee chose not to adopt it, I'm not sure how the
Division of Insurance would be able to adjust the rates

accordingly."

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX renoved her objection to Anmendnent 1.
There being no further objection, Arendnent 1 was adopt ed.

11:47:54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN noved to report HB 288, as anmended, out of
commttee with individual recomendati ons and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 228(L&C) was
reported fromthe House Labor and Commerce Standi ng Comrittee.

The commttee took an at-ease from 11:48:31 to 11:56:12.
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
11: 56: 53 AM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 28- April 16, 2007



